
Adopted Minutes 
Spanish Fork City Planning Commission Meeting 

December 2, 2009 
 
 
Commission Members Present:  Chairman Michael Christianson, Del Robins, 
Shane Marshall, Rick Evans, Dave Stroud, Tyler Cope.  
 
Staff Present:  Dave Anderson, Planning Director; Shelley Hendrickson, 
Planning Secretary; Kirk Nord, Assistant City Attorney, Chris Thompson, Assistant 
City Engineer. 
 
Citizens Present: Warren Peterson, JP Hughes, Elaine Hughes, David Simpson, 
Joan & Ross Swenson, Wes Otteson, Stephen Hoban, Nina Isaacson, Scott 
Isaacson, Grant Jensen, Alira Orwin, Kevin Sullenberger, John Taylor, Lucille 
Taylor, Karen Sabey, Max Sabey, David Lewis, Lynn Otteson, Nych Ottesen. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Christianson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.   
 
 
PRELIMINARY ACTIVITIES 
 

Pledge 
 
Commissioner Evans led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Adoption of Minutes:  November 4, 2009  
 
Commissioner Robins moved to approve the minutes of November 4, 2009.  
Commissioner Marshall seconded and the motion passed all in favor. 
 
Commissioner Evans moved to open into public hearing.  Commissioner 
Marshall seconded and the motion passed all in favor at 6:03 p.m. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Proposed Amendments to Title 15, Site Plan 
Development Requirements 
Applicant:  Spanish Fork City   
General Plan: City-wide 
Zoning: City-wide 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 1 of 16 12-02-09 
 



Location: City-wide 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that Spanish Fork City was the applicant initiating the 
proposed changes.  He said that concerns had been developing, over several 
years, with how properties had developed and were being maintained (debris, 
poorly maintained, screening of inoperable vehicles and parts from public view).  
The proposal was drafted to provide basic criteria that would need to be met for 
the development of new outdoor storage.  He said it was his belief that the 
proposed changes would, over time, eliminate the concerns that City staff had 
presently.  He explained the proposed changes using a document projected on 
the overhead projector. 
 
Commissioner Marshall asked about outdoor display in the C-2 zone and how the 
requirement for 5 acres of asphalt for storage was determined.  He said that he 
felt 5 acres of asphalt was excessive.  Mr. Anderson explained that he did not 
feel that outdoor storage was the best use for land and would like to encourage 
land owners to limit outdoor storage.  Discussion was held regarding what the 
size for outdoor storage should be and whether or not the City would want a 5-
acre asphalt parcel. 
 
Commissioner Christianson asked if the concern was dust. 
 
Mr. Anderson said that was one concern and explained that several other 
concerns are probably more significant. 
 
Commissioner Christianson asked if a setback would help.  Mr. Anderson said 
that City staff had not contemplated that and if the Commission wanted to 
continue the item to please be specific as to what they wanted staff to focus on 
and study. 
 
Commissioner Marshall asked about lighting.  Mr. Anderson said it was for safety.  
Commissioner Marshall and Evans felt that it was not a good use of electricity to 
light up a storage area all night. 
 
Commissioner Evans asked if the lighting could be attached to the use. 
 
Discussion was held regarding lighting and the height that storage can be 
stacked. 
 
Mr. Anderson said that, if the Commission would prefer to have outdoor storage 
as a Conditional Use instead of a permitted use, then he could make those 
changes. 
 
**Commissioner Stroud and Commissioner Cope arrived at 6:26 p.m. 
 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 2 of 16 12-02-09 
 



Chairman Christianson welcomed public comment.  There was none. 
 
Commissioner Robins moved to continue the proposed Amendments to Title 
15, Site Plan Development Requirements, for one month, in order for the 
Commission to study the changes.  Commissioner Marshall seconded and the 
motion passed all in favor. 
 
 
Proposed Amendments to Title 15, American Leadership 
Academy Text Amendment 
Applicant: American Leadership Academy  
General Plan: Residential 1.5 to 2.5 units per acre 
Zoning: R-1-15 
Location: City-wide 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that there was a non-conforming structure on the ALA 
site and that there had been other applications for text amendments in order to 
make the building a conforming use.  He explained that the building was 
constructed closer to the property line than what our setback requirement 
allowed; therefore, violating the setback.  He said that if the setbacks in the R-1-
15 zone were changed to be identical to the setbacks in the R-1-12 zone then it 
would make the structure conform.  He explained the setbacks in the Residential 
Development Standards table in Title 15 of the Municipal Code.   
 
Commissioner Robins asked why the request was not for the R-1-12 zone.  Mr. 
Anderson said he thought it was because some City Council members did not 
want to decrease the square footage in the area because the anticipated lot sizes 
are larger in the Mill Road area. 
 
Chairman Christianson welcomed public comment.  There was none. 
 
Commissioner Marshall moved to recommend to the City Council that the 
proposed American Leadership Academy Zoning Text Amendment and Zone 
Change be approved based on the following findings: 
 
Findings 
 

1. That the proposed Zone Change is consistent to the General Plan 
designation for the property. 

2. That changing the setback requirements for the R-1-15 zone will not 
create any significant or noteworthy change in how properties in the R-1-
15 zone are developed. 

 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 3 of 16 12-02-09 
 



Commissioner Stroud seconded and the motion passed by a roll call vote.  
Commissioner Robins voted nay because he said he did not like shrinking 
setbacks.  
 
American Leadership Academy Zone Change 
Applicant:  American Leadership Academy 
General Plan: Residential 1.5 to 2.5 units per acre 
Zoning: R-1-30 existing, R-1-15 requested 
Location: 1100 South Mill Road 
 
Discussion and motion took place with the discussion on the American 
Leadership Academy Text Amendment. 
 
Peterson Spanish Cove Zone Change 
Applicant:  Warren Peterson 
General Plan: Residential 9 to 12 units per acre 
Zoning: R-3 existing, In-Fill Overlay requested 
Location: 245 North 300 East 
 
Mr. Anderson gave a brief history of the project and explained that this request 
was for the In-Fill Overlay zone in order to accommodate two twin home 
structures.  He explained the proposal with images projected on the overhead 
projector.  He explained that there were two different components to the 
proposal, the In-Fill Overlay zone and the Preliminary Plat.  He said the parking 
met the City’s parking ordinance and the landscape met the City’s landscape 
ordinance. 
 
Commissioner Robins asked Mr. Anderson to explain the DRC’s approval on how 
they felt the proposed architecture was superior to other twin home structures 
within the City.  Mr. Anderson said inclusion of different features on the roof, 
building materials, etc.  Commissioner Stroud asked if there was a development 
agreement that would ensure that what was being proposed would indeed be 
what was constructed.   
 
Discussion was held regarding how to guarantee that what is proposed is 
constructed.  Mr. Anderson said it was through a building permit.  Mr. Nord 
explained that a development agreement could be written if the Commission had 
it as a condition of approval. 
 
Commissioner Marshall said that in the past the applicant provided more material 
for an In-Fill Overlay request than had been provided for this proposal.  Mr. 
Anderson explained that the material had been provided when the Commission 
saw the zone request previously.  Commissioner Marshall asked if the materials 
could be included every time. 
 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 4 of 16 12-02-09 
 



Warren Peterson 
Mr. Peterson explained the parking situation with the proposal by using images 
projected by the overhead projector. 
 
Commissioner Marshall asked about a shaded part of the Site Plan being parking 
or a driveway.  Mr. Anderson said it was both. 
 
Chairman Christianson asked what the depth was on the lot.  Mr. Peterson said it 
was approximately 176 feet.  Chairman Christianson asked about fire hydrants.  
Mr. Thompson explained the City’s fire hydrant standards. 
 
Chairman Christianson welcomed public comment. 
 
Les Otteson 
Mr. Otteson read from an article addressing the definition of high density housing 
and crime statistics.  He expressed that he felt this proposal was high density 
and asked the Commission to not allow it. 
 
Chairman Christianson and Commissioner Robins explained what they felt the 
intent of the In-Fill Overlay zone was. 
 
Mr. Otteson said in his opinion he felt that the Commission was opening a door 
for high density. 
 
Commissioner Evans asked Mr. Otteson for his opinion, on his belief, that better 
quality as opposed to density was a trade off.  Mr. Otteson said his concern was 
density. 
 
Lynn Otteson 
Ms. Otteson asked for the live broadcast of the meeting to be stopped while she 
commented, for the protection of her family.  She told how she had been on a 
walk in her neighborhood.  While on her walk she observed a property with two 
twin homes where 8-12 people were living.  She assumed more than one family 
was living there.  As she walked past she was approached by two men that 
stopped her, gave her a very detailed description of an individual and asked her 
if she had seen him.  She told them that she had not and continued on her walk.  
As she walked she noticed blood on the sidewalk.  She said she believes that a 
young man of fourteen years of age was beat up by the individuals that had 
stopped her.  She said that she felt that density matters and would like a study 
to be done.  She said she felt that it was very pertinent to have a study done. 
 
Commissioner Robins said, in all due respect, that four additional units did not 
constitute high density. 
 
Ms. Otteson asked what it would take for Mr. Anderson to look at density. 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 5 of 16 12-02-09 
 



 
Commissioner Robins explained that the General Plan had been looked at and 
would be studied again in 2010. 
 
Joan Swenson 
Ms. Swenson said her concern was an increase in units and asked if the 
Commission was taking into consideration the people that live in the community.  
Where will water come from, schools, police department, traffic, etc.  She 
challenged the Commission to think about what they are doing to the 
community. 
 
Commissioner Cope explained that he felt the design of the twin homes was 
superior and felt that it would conform to the surrounding area.  He liked the 
variation in the direction the structures face and said it would look really good. 
 
Commissioner Marshall explained that they had been working on the ordinance 
for over a year, placed a moratorium, discussed at length in several meetings, 
passed an ordinance, and then looked at it again because they wanted to make 
the City develop better, and this ordinance was what the City was looking for.  
He said that he appreciated the application and felt it addressed the In-Fill 
Overlay Zone exactly.  He suggested that the citizens come when the General 
Plan is reviewed. 
 
Ms. Otteson explained that she had thought about what the proposal ought to 
look like if it was approved.  She said she felt it should look like the 
neighborhood and that the way it was proposed was very modern looking and 
did not look like the neighborhood since the majority of homes were all brick.  
She asked about landscape, fencing, and lighting. 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that the fencing requirement was a masonry wall around 
the boundary. 
 
Commissioner Robins explained that they see a lot of proposals for duplexes and 
that he felt that this proposal was a substantial upgrade over what had been 
approved in recent years. 
 
Nick Otteson 
Mr. Otteson told the Commission that he felt the point people were trying to 
make regarding density was that, within a four block radius, there were already a 
lot of apartments.  He said he appreciated how well the property looked, the 
architecture, landscape etc., but the main concern was that the area was already 
such high density that it was not any type of trade. 
 
Commissioner Robins explained that he had come to believe that it is quality not 
quantity. 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 6 of 16 12-02-09 
 



 
Discussion was held regarding the legalities of the ordinances. 
 
Alira Orwin 
Ms. Orwin asked what meetings she or any citizen would need to attend so that 
their opinions would count. 
 
Discussion was held regarding City meetings and when the appropriate time to 
voice an opinion would count. 
 
Sydney Otteson 
Ms. Otteson said she was at the meeting and felt that her opinion did not matter. 
 
Discussion was held regarding how the Commission was treating public 
comments. 
 
Ms. Otteson said that in studies the ideal community is to spread out the density, 
not to put it into one spot.  She said they already have enough in their 
neighborhood and to put it somewhere else. 
  
Commissioner Stroud said that he has multi-family units on his street and that 
there have been no problems of adverse impacts on the neighborhood.  He 
expressed his opinion of the proposal.  He supports the project. 
 
Commissioner Evans said that he had the same points as some of the citizens.  
He expressed his opinion of the proposal. 
 
Commissioner Robins moved to close the public hearing on this item.  
Commissioner Evans seconded and the motion passed all in favor.  
Commissioner Marshall voted nay.  Commissioner Evans voted nay. 
 
Commissioner Robins moved to recommend to the City Council approval of the 
In-Fill Overlay Zone for Peterson Spanish Cove based on the following findings: 
 
Findings 
 

1. That the number of units is within the density range found in the General 
Plan. 

2. That the proposed design meets the requirements of the In-Fill Overlay 
Zone. 

3. That the proposed architecture is superior to what is found in other twin 
home projects in the City. 

4. That the development would not have an adverse impact on the 
surrounding properties. 

 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 7 of 16 12-02-09 
 



Commissioner Marshall seconded and the motion passed all in favor. 
 
Commissioner Robins moved to recommend that the proposed Peterson Spanish 
Cove Preliminary Plat be approved based on the following findings and subject 
to the following conditions: 
 
Findings 
 

1. That the number of units is within the density range found in the General 
Plan. 

2. That the proposed design meets the requirements of the In-Fill Overlay 
Zone. 

3. That the proposed architecture is superior to what is found in other twin 
home projects in the City. 

4. That the development would not have an adverse impact on the 
surrounding properties. 

 
Conditions 
 

1. That the applicant submits a more detailed Landscaping Plan with the 
Final Plat submittal. 

2. That the applicant meets the City construction and development 
standards. 

3. That the applicant meets any Engineering and Electrical Department 
conditions with the Final Plat submittal. 

 
Commissioner Stroud seconded and the motion passed all in favor by a roll call 
vote. 
 
Jensen Zone Change and General Plan Amendment 
Applicant:  Grant Jensen 
General Plan: Residential 9 to 12 units per acre existing, General Commercial 
requested 
Zoning: R-1-6 existing, Commercial 2 requested 
Location: 55 East 700 North 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that the applicant asked him what he would need to do 
in order to use the property as a parking lot for his commercial building.  Mr. 
Anderson said that he told him that in order for him to build a parking lot he 
would need to amend the City’s General Plan Map and change the zoning to a 
commercial designation.  Mr. Anderson explained the only concern that staff had 
was that the home on the property that would need to maintain a minimum lot 
size of 6,000 square feet.  He explained the requirements that would need to be 
met when commercial uses abut a residential use.   
 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 8 of 16 12-02-09 
 



Commissioner Stroud asked how the property would be accessed.  Mr. Anderson 
said that Mr. Jensen suggested he had an easement along the southern property 
line.   
 
Commissioner Robins asked what the easement was. 
 
Grant Jensen 
Mr. Jensen told the Commission that he had an 18-foot easement out to 700 
North.  
 
Commissioner Marshall asked what was currently there now.  Mr. Jensen said 
weeds. 
 
Commissioner Evans asked Mr. Jensen how many parking spaces he was 
proposing.  Mr. Jensen said he had at least 12 spaces.  Mr. Anderson said there 
would be room for approximately 10 spaces. 
 
Chairman Christianson welcomed public comment. 
 
Max Sabey 
Mr. Sabey said he did not have heartburn over the parking.  He said that the 
previous owner ran the property commercially when it was residential so he 
wanted some assurance that what gets approved is what will really happen on 
the property.  He was also concerned about lighting, drainage, fencing and 
landscape. 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that a 10-foot landscape buffer and a masonry wall was 
required where a commercial use abuts residential.  He said that trees and 
shrubs would be required. 
 
Mr. Thompson explained that they would have to retain the storm drain on-site. 
 
Mr. Jensen explained how he would handle the storm drain and landscaping, and 
addressed concerns over the gate.  He said he could keep it closed if that was 
what the residents wanted.  He said he had no intention to zone the house 
commercial. 
 
Alira Orwin 
Ms. Orwin explained to the Commission where she lived.  She said that Mr. 
Jensen inherited the mess and that the previous owner had said the property 
would remain residential but then used it as a commercial storage site.  She 
asked what the time frame would be for when Mr. Jensen would have to have 
the parking lot built by. 
 
Discussion was held regarding zoning and what could happen with the property. 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 9 of 16 12-02-09 
 



 
Commissioner Robins said he felt comfortable with the proposal but asked if 
there was a way to ensure that what was proposed was built. 
 
Mr. Anderson said there was not. 
 
Mary Flinders 
Ms. Flinders expressed her concern over if the property was approved for a 
commercial use what would really go on there.  She would like the parking lot 
closed at night. 
 
Commissioner Marshall moved to recommend to the City Council approval of 
the proposed Jensen General Plan and Zoning Map Amendments.  Commissioner 
Robins seconded and the motion passed all in favor by a roll call vote. 
 
*Chairman Christianson offered a five minute break at 8:47 p.m.  Reconvened at 8:54 pm. 
 
Isaacson Zone Change and General Plan Amendment 
Applicant:  Scott Isaacson 
General Plan: Residential 5.5 to 8 units per acre existing, 
Residential Office requested 
Zoning: R-1-6 existing, Residential Office requested 
Location: 885 North 200 East 
 
Mr. Anderson explained the proposal and the General Plan.  He said that a Home 
Occupation Business License had been issued for this location but that the 
applicant would like to use the structure as a commercial use.  He explained that 
this section of the City was one of the sections that the Commission anticipates 
studying with the General Plan in 2010.     
 
Chairman Christianson asked if there had been any contact with any of the other 
property owners that the City had included in the General Plan Amendment.  Mr. 
Anderson said no. 
 
Scott Isaacson 
Mr. Isaacson said they had purchased the home in August and cleaned it up.  He 
said his wife had a master’s degree in oriental medicine.  She has 15-25 patients 
a week with one patient coming every hour.  He said that they had looked at the 
zoning rules.  He said he felt the change would not change the nature of the 
neighborhood and that he had met most of the neighbors and talked with them 
and feel that they are supportive.   
 
Steve Hogan 
Mr. Hogan is concerned about the Zone Change and if his taxes would go up.   
 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 10 of 16 12-02-09 
 



Mr. Anderson explained the difference in the C-O and R-O zones. 
 
Mr. Isaacson explained what the difference would be to run the home-based 
business versus a commercial business. 
 
Discussion was held regarding looking at the bigger picture with the General 
Plan. 
 
Commissioner Robins asked Mr. Anderson how long he felt the General Plan 
discussion would last.  Mr. Anderson said probably into July of 2010. 
 
Commissioner Evans expressed concern with the precedence of piece-mealing 
the general plan and not looking at it from a broader view. 
 
Discussion was held regarding a time table for the General Plan amendment 
change. 
 
Commissioner Cope asked if, in a commercial office zone, you could occupy the 
residence.  Mr. Anderson said you could not live there. 
 
Discussion was held regarding zoning and cross-zoning on the General Plan. 
 
Commissioner Marshall said it pained him to look at only one block of the 
General Plan.  
 
Commissioner Marshall moved to recommend to the City Council that they 
postpone taking action until the 2010 General Plan review was complete.  
Commissioner Evans seconded and the motion passed by a roll call vote.  
Commissioner Robins voted nay because he felt it was not right to delay 
property rights based on legislative action. Commissioner Cope voted nay 
because he was not in favor of tabling very many motions. 
 
 
Spanish Fork Assisted Living Conditional Use Approval 
Applicant:  Rockworth Companies 
General Plan: General Commercial 
Zoning: R-1-8 
Location: 1450 East 100 South 
 
Commissioner Marshall moved to continue the Spanish Fork Assisted Living 
Conditional Use approval until their next meeting.  Commissioner Robins 
seconded and the motion passed all in favor. 
 
 
Jones/Hughes Conditional Use 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 11 of 16 12-02-09 
 



Applicant:  J.P. Hughes 
General Plan: Residential 9 to 12 units per acre 
Zoning: R-1-6 
Location: 64 East 100 South 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that the proposal was to expand the use of a museum.  
He said that this museum was a Conditional Use in a residential zone, but that 
our residential zoning ordinances did allow for museums as a Conditional Use.  
He said the applicant would like to expand the museum by constructing a barn 
that would house artifacts that are part of the museum.   
 
Commissioner Marshall asked if this was the principle structure or an accessory 
building.  Mr. Anderson said it was the principle structure on a flag lot. 
 
Mr. Anderson said he felt that the use was a service to the community and would 
help the applicant to maintain the property. 
 
Commissioner Robins asked for the height restriction in the zone.  Mr. Anderson 
said that it was 30 feet. 
 
JP Hughes 
Mr. Hughes gave a background on the property and said that they would be 
storing sheep wagons and other wagons to store and display it.  He said the 
museum was a non-profit and that there were no sales or promotion of the 
property.   
 
Commissioner Robins asked what the tallest artifact piece was that they would 
be storing in the structure.  Mr. Hughes told him and Commissioner Robins 
determined that the ceiling would need to be at least 20 feet high. 
 
Chairman Christianson welcomed public comment. 
 
Lucille Taylor 
Ms. Taylor explained where she lived and said that they built the home 43 years 
ago.  She expressed her joy in living in Spanish Fork but was concerned about 
the negative impact on her home.  She said the visual impact of a 72-foot long, 
20-25 foot high steel building was staggering.  She asked how much traffic 
would be going into the building and where the access would be and where 
people coming would travel on the property.  She asked what would be stored in 
the building and if it would be flammable.  She said the nature of the 
neighborhood was residential and the valuation of her property was an issue.  
She urged the Commission to deny the Conditional Use and if they did not deny 
it to add strong stipulations.  She said she would like a site and sound barrier 
and that she did not want to see the building or hear traffic.  She would like 
landscaping along the fence, perhaps a taller fence and evergreen trees.  She 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 12 of 16 12-02-09 
 



asked that the building not be allowed to be larger than 20 feet.  She said that a 
bright yard light would make it difficult for her to sleep. 
 
Commissioner Evans assured Ms. Taylor that the use could not change if the 
property was sold. 
 
Commissioner Robins asked what would mitigate her concerns.  She said not to 
build it. 
 
Bruce Hall 
Mr. Hall said the building itself would be a little different than the picture that 
had been supplied.  He explained what would be different.  He expressed that 
they were trying to preserve the history of Spanish Fork. 
 
Commissioner Robins asked if there were any plans to break up the flat space 
and what materials were available to finish it with other than the metal siding. 
 
Mr. Hughes said that anything they built would not be to the satisfaction of the 
neighborhood.  He said his heart was in the preservation of history.  He offered 
to buy the Taylor home if she would like to move.   
 
John Taylor 
Mr. Taylor said that the concern was that when you walk out of the Taylor 
home’s back door that is where the building would be.  He asked if there were 
different ways to sheath the building and said that the way it was proposed 
sounded like the description of an autobody shop.  He said the building was such 
a large scale structure visible from the back porch. 
 
Commissioner Stroud said he wanted to see scaled details of all four sides of the 
building, the hard surface and a better Site Plan. 
 
Commissioner Evans said he would like to see what the building will actually look 
like.  His recommendation would be to ask for more information in order to make 
and informed decision. 
 
Mr. Hall said the access would be a gravel driveway.   
 
Commissioner Stroud said he would need to see the landscape and a lighting 
plan. 
 
Ms. Hughes explained that people would walk down the driveway and turn east 
into the building.  She said that the windows were sky lights and that the 
building was designed in order to keep the artifacts secure.  She said that trucks 
would not go in and out of the structure.   
 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 13 of 16 12-02-09 
 



Discussion was held regarding landscaping, fencing details and the sheer size of 
the building with a flat surface that is not broken up. 
 
Commissioner Evans said he did not have a feel for what the structure would 
even look like.  He requested more information and told the applicant to 
incorporate a material for the building that is more conducive to the 
neighborhood. 
 
JP Hughes 
Mr. Hughes explained that he would cooperate but that what was being asked of 
him would cost money.  He said he felt uncomfortable leaving it unapproved and 
bringing back another design. 
 
Commissioner Robins moved to continue the item.  He said he would like the 
applicant to provide more information and discussion was held regarding what 
the Commission would like to see.  Commissioner Evans seconded and the 
motion passed by a roll call vote.  Chairman Christianson voted nay and 
expressed that he felt that the applicant was not going to come back with 
something much different. 
 
Commissioner Marshall moved to close public hearing.  Commissioner Marshall 
rescinded his motion and the Commission all agreed to go out of public hearing 
without a motion. 
 
  
STAFF REPORTS 
 
Maple Mountain Amended 
Applicant:  Dave Simpson   
General Plan: Residential 2.5 to 3.5 units per acre 
Zoning: R-1-12 
Location: 100 North 1500 East 
 
Mr. Anderson gave background on the proposal.  He explained that the original 
approval was for over 350 lots and that with this proposal the project would drop 
to 308 units.  He said that there were some loose ends that needed to be tied 
up, along with the need for a phasing plan.  As part of the phasing plan Mr. 
Anderson talked with Mr. Simpson about the need for storm drain detention.  Mr. 
Thompson explained that the northern part of the development was not sized to 
have direct input from the subdivision.   
 
Chairman Christianson said that they had received a lot of bonus density and 
wanted to make sure that we had received a landscaped trail along the railroad 
tracks and a clubhouse.  Mr. Anderson said that the clubhouse and the park had 
not been constructed. 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 14 of 16 12-02-09 
 



 
Discussion was held regarding the park being less than five acres and if the 
applicant had proffered anything in lieu of the change. 
 
Commissioner Robins said his biggest concern was not having things nailed down 
and, with the building of a school being on one lot, were they missing any 
details. 
 
Commissioner Marshall moved to recommend to the City Council approval of 
the Maple Mountain Amended Preliminary Plat subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
Conditions 
 

1. That the applicant meets all of the conditions of the original approval. 
2. That a phasing plan and storm drain be developed prior to Final Plat 

approval. 
 
Commissioner Robins seconded and the motion passed all in favor. 
 
Pine View 
Applicant:  Kay Heaps 
General Plan: Residential 1.5 to 2.5 units per acre 
Zoning: R-1-15 
Location: 2700 East 750 South 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that the proposed division would create two lots.  He 
said that the property was annexed into the City two years ago.   
 
Chairman Christianson asked if they were approving two lots for the record. 
 
Commissioner Robins asked if there was enough room for homes and a road on 
the east side of the proposal.  Mr. Anderson said that there would be. 
 
Commissioner Robins moved to recommend to the City Council approval of the 
Pine View Preliminary Plat subject to the applicant completing the SESD buyout 
as is stipulated in the Envision Annexation Agreement.  Commissioner Stroud 
seconded and the motion passed all in favor by a roll call vote. 
 
Peterson Spanish Cove Preliminary Plat 
Applicant:  Warren Peterson 
General Plan: Residential 9 to 12 units per acre 
Zoning: R-3 existing, In-Fill Overlay requested 
Location: 245 North 300 East 
 

Planning Commission Minutes     Page 15 of 16 12-02-09 
 



Planning Commission Minutes     Page 16 of 16 12-02-09 
 

Discussion and action taken with the Peterson Spanish Cove Zone Change. 
 
Spanish Fork Assisted Living Preliminary Plat 
Applicant:  Rockworth Companies 
General Plan:  General Commercial 
Zoning:  R-1-8 
Location: 1450 East 100 South 
 
Discussion and action taken with the Spanish Fork Assisted Living Conditional 
Use approval. 
 
OTHER DISCUSSION 
 
Discussion on Planning Commission work program 
 
No discussion. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Commissioner Christianson moved to adjourn.  Commissioner Marshall 
seconded and the motion passed all in favor at 10:58 p.m. 
 
Adopted:  January 6, 2010 

________________________________ 
     Shelley Hendrickson, Planning Secretary   
    


